
 

PLANNING COMMISSION 

CITY OF BAY CITY 

Thursday, December 15, 2022 at 5:00 PM 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS | 1901 5th Street 

Through a united and collaborative effort, we seek to grow the City of Bay City with a 
diverse culture that is proud to call Bay City home. We envision a thriving family-centered 
community where citizens are involved in the future development of our city. We desire 
our citizens to work, play, worship and shop in the community in which we live. Visitors 
are welcomed and encouraged to enjoy the friendly environment and amenities the 
citizens and business owners have created together. 

AGENDA 

CALL TO ORDER 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. Meeting Minutes of September 15, 2022 

REGULAR ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION, CONSIDERATION AND/OR APPROVAL: 

2. Review, discuss, and/or approve preliminary or final plat of Valor Park, Section 1 
Subdivision Development, being a 6.492 acre tract of land in the I&GNRR Co 
Survey 4, Block 4, Abstract 268, in the City of Bay City, Matagorda County, 
Texas which is located east of Avenue M, north of 16th Street and Carey Smith 
Blvd. 

3. Review, discuss, and/or approve preliminary or final plat of Russell Ranch 
Subdivision, being a 49.71 acre tract of land in the I&GNRR Co Survey, Abstract 
No. 270 & 271, in the City of Bay City, Matagorda County, Texas which is located 
south of Doris St., north of 7th St. and west of Old Van Vleck Road. 

4. Review of minor plats recently reviewed and approved by Public Works: Bay 
City Cottages (1901 Merlin); Union Pacific RR (2617 & 2619 Ave E and 2612 & 
2614 Ave F); Marino Galgo re-plat (3207 & 3215 Ave I) 

5. Update of subdivisions currently in development process: TIRZ #1A - Valor Park 
Sec 1; TIRZ #2 - Bay City 35, LLC Sec 1; TIRZ #3 - Meadow Oaks Pahse 2; TIRZ 
#4 - Russel Ranch. 

Page 1



 
 
Agenda Planning Commission December 15, 2022 
 

 
6. Review of upcoming residential subdivision developments: 12th St northwest of 

Moore Ave; Skelly Road; Misty Lane; CR 102. 

ITEMS / COMMENTS FROM BOARD MEMBERS 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

State Law prohibits any deliberation of or decisions regarding items presented in public 
comments. City Council may only make a statement of specific factual information given in 
response to the inquiry; recite an existing policy; or request staff places the item on an agenda 
for a subsequent meeting. 

ADJOURNMENT 

CERTIFICATION OF NOTICE 

This is to certify that the above notice of a Special Called Meeting was posted on the front window 
of the City Hall of the City of Bay City, Texas on Monday, December 12, 2022 before 5:00 p.m. 
Any questions concerning the above items, please contact Mayor Robert K. Nelson at (979) 245-
2137. 

AGENDA NOTICES: 

Bay City Planning Commission: 

The Bay City Planning Commission serves as an advisory body to City Council and the Mayor. Therefore, 
although the Board does not fall under the purview of the Texas Open Meetings Act, its meetings shall 
be open to members of the public. 

Attendance by Other Elected or Appointed Officials: 

It is anticipated that members of other city board, commissions and/or committees may attend the 
meeting in numbers that may constitute a quorum of the other city boards, commissions and/or 
committees. Notice is hereby given that the meeting, to the extent required by law, is also noticed as a 
meeting of the other boards, commissions and/or committees of the City, whose members may be in 
attendance. The members of the boards, commissions and/or committees may participate in discussions 
on the same items listed on the agenda, which occur at the meeting, but no action will be taken by such 
in attendance unless such item and action is specifically provided for on an agenda for that board, 
commission or committee subject to the Texas Open Meetings Act. 

The facility is wheelchair accessible and accessible parking spaces available. Request for 
accommodations or interpretive services must be made 48 hours prior to the meeting. Please contact the 
City Secretary's Office at 979-245-5311 or email, jthompson@cityofbaycity.org for further information. 

 

______________________________ 

Jeanna Thompson 

City Secretary  

Page 2



Minutes Planning Commission  September 15, 2022 

 

Bay City  Page 1 

CITY OF BAY CITY 
MINUTES  JULY 28, 2022 

COUNCIL 
CHAMBERS | 1901 
5th Street 

Planning Commission Meeting 5:00 PM 

1901 5TH STREET 
BAY CITY TX,77414 

 

Bay City is committed to developing and enhancing the long-term prosperity,  
sustainability, and health of the community. 

CALL TO ORDER 

The meeting was called to order by Chairperson Jessica Russell at 5:02 pm. 

PRESENT 
Commissioner Joshua Fortenberry 
Chairperson Jessica Russell 
Commissioner Zeinab Ghais 
Commissioner Marion Garcia 
 
ABSENT 
Commissioner Erik Frankson 
Commissioner Raihan Khondker 
Commissioner Carolyn Barclay 
 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Motion made by Commissioner Ghais to approve the agenda, Seconded by Commissioner 
Fortenberry. Voting Yea: Commissioner Fortenberry, Chairperson Russell, Commissioner 
Ghais, Commissioner Garcia. Motion carried. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. Meeting Minutes of July 28, 2022 

Motion made by Commissioner Ghais to approve the minutes, Seconded by 
Commissioner Fortenberry. 

Page 3

ITEM #1.



Minutes Planning Commission  September 15, 2022 

 

Bay City  Page 2 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Fortenberry, Chairperson Russell, Commissioner Ghais, 
Commissioner Garcia. Motion carried. 
 

REGULAR ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION, CONSIDERATION AND/OR APPROVAL: 

2. Variance ~ Discuss, consider, and/or approve a variance to the Municipal Code 
of Ordiances, Sec. 54-29 through 54-83, Sec. 54-110 through 54-201, Sec. 54-203, 
Sec. 54-240 through 54-259 at East Heights S/D, Block 8, Lot 7 & 8 (2600 
Sycamore). Malanie Patterson/Herbert Hawkins Jr. 

Krystal Mason, City Planning Manager, gave a summary of the background of the 
property stating the Code Enforcement had had a case of three substandard mobile 
homes in 2020 that were demolished and the new owner had needed to put new 
mobile homes on the property within 180 days to maintain the "Non-Conforming" 
Mobile Home Park. Ms. Patterson was able to get one mobile home on the property 
but due to delays because of permitting and lack of permitting has not been able to get 
the others on the property yet. The current placed home is in the Utility Easement and 
needs to be moved. Ms. Mason also stated that the proposed plats to add one or two 
more trailers will not provide the requires set backs and spacing.  

Mr. Herbert Hawkins Jr., Attorney representing Ms. Patterson, and Shawna Burkhart, 
City Manager, both discussed what Texas Municipal League advised. Mr. Hawkins 
stated that the City gives setback variances all the time and that neighborhood is 
having a housing shortage and this is a financial hardship for Ms. Patterson. 

Chairman Russell stated that she is concerned for the residents safety in regards to a 
fire, but believes allowing additional time for Ms. Patterson to get the homes on the 
property. 

Motion made by Commissioner Ghais to extend the time to an additional 180 days, not 
to remove the status and table the replat with setback and spacing variances, 
Seconded by Commissioner Fortenberry. Voting Yea: Commissioner Fortenberry, 
Chairperson Russell, Commissioner Ghais, Commissioner Garcia. Motion carried. 
 

3. Review, discuss, and/or approve preliminary or final plat of Bay City 35, LLC 
Sec. 1 development being a subdivision of 31.01 acres out of the John Duncan 
Survey No. 3, A-150 in Bay City, Matagorda County, Texas which is located north 
of Hwy 35 (7th St), south of Old Van Vleck Rd, and east of McCrosky Rd.   

Chairman Russell advised the commission to approve as the final plat.  

Motion made by Commissioner Ghais to approve as the final plat of Bay City 35, LLC 
Sec. 1 development being a subdivision of 31.01 acres out of the John Duncan Survey 
No. 3, A-150 in Bay City contingent on Public Works approval. Seconded by 
Commissioner Fortenberry. Voting Yea: Commissioner Fortenberry, Chairperson 

Page 4

ITEM #1.



Minutes Planning Commission  September 15, 2022 

 

Bay City  Page 3 

Russell, Commissioner Ghais, Commissioner Garcia. Motion carried. 
 

4. Variance ~ Discuss, consider and/or approve a variance to the City of Bay City 
Code of Ordinance, Sec. 98-100 "Building Lines" at the Bay City Original 
Townsight, Block 82, Lots 1-3 and 10-12.  UPRR (G-W Engr) 

Krystal Mason, City Planning Manager, stated that the property was owned by Union 
Pacific and structures have been there for about 50 years. 

Motion made by Commissioner Ghais to approve the variance to building lines at the 
Bay City Original Townsite, Block 82, Lots 1-3 and 10-12, Seconded by Commissioner 
Fortenberry. Voting Yea: Commissioner Fortenberry, Chairperson Russell, 
Commissioner Ghais, Commissioner Garcia. Motion carried. 
 

ITEMS / COMMENTS FROM BOARD MEMBERS 

Chairman Russell commended Public Works and their time spent. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

State Law prohibits any deliberation of or decisions regarding items presented in public 
comments. City Council may only make a statement of specific factual information given in 
response to the inquiry; recite an existing policy; or request staff places the item on an agenda 
for a subsequent meeting. 

There were no public comments. 

ADJOURNMENT 

Motion made by Commissioner Ghais to adjourn, Seconded by Commissioner 
Fortenberry. Voting Yea: Commissioner Fortenberry, Chairperson Russell, Commissioner 
Ghais, Commissioner Garcia. Motion carried and the meeting adjourned at 5:55 pm. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED, this ____ day of _____________, 20____. 

 

   

 JESSICA RUSSELL 

CHAIRMAN 

 

Page 5

ITEM #1.



F-324
10/20/2022

20

SAL HOLDINGS, LLC

NOTE: TREES SHALL NOTE BE
PLANTED IN UTILITY EASEMENTS

NOTE: FENCES CONSTRUCTED
ON OR ACROSS A UTILTY

EASEMENT MAY BE REMOVED
AT PROPERY OWNER'S EXPENSE

FOR UTILITY REPAIRS

SITE

Page 6

ITEM #2.



”
“ ”

”
“ ”

” “
”

” “
”

” “
”

” “
”

” “
”

” “
”

” “
”

” “
”

” “
”

” “
”

” “
”

” “
”

” “
”

” “
”

” “
”

” “
”

” “
”

” “
”

” “
”

” “
”

”
” “

”

”

”

”

10/20/2022

Page 7

ITEM #2.



Page 8

ITEM #3.



Page 9

ITEM #3.



Page 10

ITEM #3.



Page 11

ITEM #3.



Page 12

ITEM #3.



PRINTED

REVISIONS

3
8

7
4

3

1
2
2
1
 
A

V
E

 
F

B
A

Y
 
C

I
T

Y
,
 
T

X
 
7
7
4
1

4

P
H

:
 
 
 
 
 
(
9
7
9
)
 
2
4

5
-
8
9
0
0

F
A

X
:
 
 
 
(
9
7
9
)
 
2
4

5
-
5
3
4
5

SCALE: 1"=100'

Page 13

ITEM #5.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NMC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CUSTOMER NAME:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NAME:

AutoCAD SHX Text
VALOR PARK --------------------- BAY CITY, TEXAS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAGE NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMARKS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
08/11/22

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMARKS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
00/00/00

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION    1

AutoCAD SHX Text
00/00/00

AutoCAD SHX Text
00/00/00

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERMIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
00/00/00

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION    2

AutoCAD SHX Text
00/00/00

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION    3

AutoCAD SHX Text
00/00/00

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION    4

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
NAME

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT INFO.: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
NMC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CM

AutoCAD SHX Text
This document is released for

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERIM REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
under the authority of Mitchell Carrillo, P.E. 125070 on

AutoCAD SHX Text
8/11/22

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARCH/ENG SEAL:

AutoCAD SHX Text
F-324

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAND PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE IN FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

MitchellCarrillo
Polygon

MitchellCarrillo
Polygon

MitchellCarrillo
Polygon

MitchellCarrillo
Polygon

MitchellCarrillo
Polygon

MitchellCarrillo
Engineer

MitchellCarrillo
Engineer
1

MitchellCarrillo
Engineer

MitchellCarrillo
Engineer
2

MitchellCarrillo
Engineer

MitchellCarrillo
Engineer
3

MitchellCarrillo
Engineer

MitchellCarrillo
Engineer
4

MitchellCarrillo
Engineer

MitchellCarrillo
Engineer
5

MitchellCarrillo
Engineer

MitchellCarrillo
Engineer
1

MitchellCarrillo
Text Box
PROPOSED PHASE



Page 14

ITEM #5.



Page 15

ITEM #5.



Page 16

ITEM #5.



M
o
o
re

A
v
e

T
ep
eyac

A
v
e

Sa
n Jos

e St

Grace St

County Road 402

Brassfield Ave

M
o
o
re

A
v
e

12th St

Co
un

ty
Ro

ad
12

A
tc
h
is
o
n
T
o
p
e
k
a
a
n
d
S
a
n
ta

F
e

A
v
e
n
u
e
C

A
v
e
n
u
e
D

A
v
e
n
u
e
A

A
v
e
n
u
e
I

Grace St

A
v
e
n
u
e
E

A
v
e
n
u
e
B

A
v
e
n
u
e
G

Lois St
Lois St

Go
lde

n Av
e

13th St
13th St

Merlin St

Ross St

A
v
e
n
u
e
F

A
v
e
n
u
e
F

A
v
e
n
u
e
C

A
v
e
n
u
e
D

11th St

9th St 9th St 9th St

10th St

A
v
e
n
u
e
A

A
v
e
n
u
e
I

12th St
12th St

A
v
e
n
u
e
E

A
v
e
n
u
e
B

A
v
e
n
u
e
H

A
v
e
n
u
e
F

A
tc
h
is
o
n
T
o
p
e
k
a
a
n
d
S
a
n
ta

F
e

Grace St

A
v
e
n
u
e
J

A
v
e
n
u
e
J

Ducros St

Merlin St

Ross St

B
u
rl in

g
to
n
N
o
rth

e
rn

S
a
n
ta

F
e

11th St

12th St West Development - MCAD PID No 43390

Esri Community Maps Contributors, Texas Parks & Wildlife, ©
OpenStreetMap, Microsoft, CONANP, Esri, HERE, Garmin, Foursquare,

Parcels

12/9/2022, 11:20:14 AM
0 0.1 0.20.05 mi

0 0.2 0.40.1 km

1:9,028

Matagorda County Appraisal District, Harris Govern -- www.harrisgovern.com
This product is for informational purposes only and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Page 17

ITEM #6.



G
R

AC
E ST12th St

12th St, NW of Moore Ave
Page 18

ITEM #6.



E
l
C
am

in
o
S
t

Bi
rkh

ill
CtCo

un
ty

Ro
ad

10
5

El
Ca

mi
no

St

El
Ca

mi
no

St

En
cin

o Av
e

Go
lde

n Av
e

L
a
V
is
ta

A
v
e

Jan
th
in
a
S
t

W
e
n
tl
e
tr
a
p
S
t

T
ellin

a
S
t

De
l M

on
te

Av
e

C
o
u
n
ty

R
o
a
d
1
0
6

C
o
u
n
ty

R
o
a
d
1
0
6

Skelly Rd Development - MCAD PID No 19881

Esri Community Maps Contributors, Texas Parks & Wildlife, ©
OpenStreetMap, Microsoft, CONANP, Esri, HERE, Garmin, Foursquare,

Parcels

12/9/2022, 11:18:53 AM
0 0.07 0.130.03 mi

0 0.1 0.20.05 km

1:4,514

Matagorda County Appraisal District, Harris Govern -- www.harrisgovern.com
This product is for informational purposes only and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Page 19

ITEM #6.



Skelly Road
Page 20

ITEM #6.



E
v
e
rg
re
e
n
S
t

Willow St

M
u
lb
e
rr
y
S
t

M
is
ty

L
n

H
o
lly

L
n

Laurel St

Spruce St

Post Oak Way

S
h
a
n
tilly

L
n

Dracena Dr

M
u
lb
e
rry

S
t

W
h
it
e
O
a
k
L
n

M
is
ty

L
n

H
o
lly

L
n

C
ot
to
nw
o
o
d
C
re
e
k

C
o
tto

n
w
o
o
d
C
re
ek

Palmetto D r

M
ag
n
o
li
a
L
n

Dracena Dr

H
ic
k
o
ry

L
n

Tupelo Dr

Hamman Rd

Misty Lane 4-plexes - MCAD PID No 12526

Esri Community Maps Contributors, Texas Parks & Wildlife, ©
OpenStreetMap, Microsoft, CONANP, Esri, HERE, Garmin, Foursquare,

Parcels

12/9/2022, 11:15:27 AM
0 0.07 0.130.03 mi

0 0.1 0.20.05 km

1:4,514

Matagorda County Appraisal District, Harris Govern -- www.harrisgovern.com
This product is for informational purposes only and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Page 21

ITEM #6.



 

 

 

 

 

Misty Lane Page 22

ITEM #6.



Cou
nty

Roa
d 102

T
u
rn
e
r
D
r

7t
h
St

7t
h
St

Cou
nty

Roa
d 102

CR 102 Development - MCAD PID No 20201

Esri Community Maps Contributors, Texas Parks & Wildlife, ©
OpenStreetMap, Microsoft, CONANP, Esri, HERE, Garmin, Foursquare,

Parcels

12/9/2022, 11:17:48 AM
0 0.03 0.060.01 mi

0 0.05 0.10.03 km

1:2,257

Matagorda County Appraisal District, Harris Govern -- www.harrisgovern.com
This product is for informational purposes only and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Page 23

ITEM #6.



8units per flr. 

16units per flr. 

green
area

County Road 102

18
9.

13
'

208.67'

20
9.

62
'

131.81'

8units per flr. 

16units per flr. 

green
area

18
9.

13
'

208.67'

20
9.

62
'

131.81'

County Road 102

OPTION 1 OPTION 2

(24 UNITS X 2 SPACES PER UNIT = 48 SPACES

PARKING SPACES REQUIRED

jmack Architects
5353 West Alabama Street, Suite 695
Houston, Texas 77056
713.524.9524    fax: 713.583.9985

Copyright. Drawings and Specifications are instruments of services and shall remain the property of Jmack Architects. LLC. They are not to be used on other  projects or extensions to this project except by agreement in writing and with appropiate compensation to the architect. Any use of the drawings and / or specifications without a written agreement from the 
architect will be subjected to legal actions and compensation per the Architectural Works Copyright Protection Act of 1990.

CR 102 (Turner Rd)

Page 24

ITEM #6.


	Top
	ITEM #1.	Plan Minutes of 9/15/22
	Planning Commission Minutes 220915 Draft

	ITEM #2.	Final Plat of Valor Park
	Valor Park Preliminary Plat

	ITEM #3.	Russell Ranch plat
	8716.003 Russel Ranch Subdivision - Preliminary Plat 082522

	ITEM #4.	Review of minor plats
	ITEM #5.	Update of subdivisions in development
	PC agenda item 3 - update of subdivisions currently in development

	ITEM #6.	Upcoming residential subdivision developments
	PC agenda item 4 - review of upcoming residential developments

	Bottom

